
Seymour Board of Education 
 

 
MEETING MINUTES (REVISED) 

 
SEYMOUR BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
REGULAR MEETING:      October 18, 2010 
Seymour High School    7:30 P.M. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:   Ed Strumello, Chairman 
      Bruce Baker 
      Judith Flood 

James Garofolo 
Peter Kubik 

      Jeanne Loda 
      Yashu Putorti 
      Fred Stanek 
      James Ward (arrived 7:45 PM) 
       
ABSENT:     All Present 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:    MaryAnne Mascolo, Superintendent 
      Christine Syriac, Associate Supt. 
      Rick Belden, Asst. Supt. of Fin. & Oper. 
      Cathy Goodrich, Principal, SHS   
      Bernadette Hamad, Principal, SMS 
      Mary Sue Feige, Principal, Bungay  
      Monica Briggs, Principal, LoPresti 
      Jim Freund, Assistant Principal, SHS  
      Paul Lucke, Assistant Principal, SHS 
      Mary Lavoie, Dir. Of Curriculum 
      Nancy Snopkowski, Dir. Of Sp. Ed 
      Fran Divito, Chair of Math Dept., SHS 
      Al Skiparis, Chair of Social Studies Dept., of SHS 
      Lisa Cheney, Chair of English Dept., SHS 
      Sara Morgatto, Chair of Special Services, SHS 
 
 
I) CALL TO ORDER 
   Ed Strumello, chairman, called the meeting to order with the Pledge of Allegiance at 7:30 P.M. 
 
10-3317:  MOTION: (Mrs. Flood, sec. Mrs. Loda) to amend the agenda to move Recognition to the top of 
the agenda. 
 
     SO VOTED: 
 
AFFIRMATIVE:  Mr. Strumello, Mr. Baker, Mr. Putorti, Mrs. Flood, Mrs. Loda, Mr. Stanek, Mr. Kubik,  
Mr. Garofolo 
 
II)  BOARD AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMUNICATIONS 
A) Recognitions 
1. Congratulations to the students who achieved at the advanced level on all of the CAPT subtests:  
Kelly Ferris, Alexa Hinds (absent), Danielle Pereira, Alexandra Rice, and Caitlin Slotter.  Ms. 
Mascolo congratulated the students and noted they honor us with their achievements. 
 
B) 21st Century Teaching and Learning 
        Ms. Mascolo reviewed transforming school culture and noted the important things that affect 
student learning e.g., instruction, teachers believe that students can learn at higher levels, and the 
administrator being an instructional leader. 
 



Board of Education 
Regular Meeting                                                                                          Oct. 18, 2010 
 

- 2 -

Ms. Syriac presented two videos showing positive school culture and toxic school culture.  The first video 
showed how the school responded to a student entering 9th grade for the first time that doesn’t learn.  The 
second video depicted the school responding to the same student entering 9th grade for the first time in a 
positive manner to help the student succeed in high school.  Ms. Mascolo noted after the second video 
that failure was not an option for the student and the school did not give up on the student. 
 
Mr. Ward recalled a student expelled about three years ago, whose grades fell in the first semester, and 
asked what has changed now.  Ms. Mascolo stated that Seymour High School now has Learning Labs 
(also for bright students), Link Crew (transition from 8th grade to high school), and Student Advisory 
(student has connection with one adult).   Ms. Mascolo noted that we still have a ways to go, but we are 
much better than we were. 
 
Assistant Principals Freund and Lucke also informed Board members students were already flagged this 
year who are failing, meetings are conducted with students, parents, and teachers, they collect at risk 
students’ grades bi-weekly from teachers, parents are called, ninth grade teams meet twice a week, and 
progress reports are put on Ed-line for all students signed up bi-weekly.  Chairman Strumello noted the 
complaint he used to get was the student that fails, the parent is going to get notified, but now the 
students who go from an A to a B, which is unacceptable in some homes, are now getting notified. 
 
C) Correspondence 

1.   None (Chairman Strumello noted there is a free Lexia RTI Workshop - Lexia Reading and 
Assessment without Testing - on November 19th.  He also noted other school staff could attend as well as 
Board members. 
 
III)  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
       NONE 
 
IV)  CONSENT AGENDA 
 
A) Approval of Minutes  
1. Regular BOE Meeting – October 4, 2010 
 
B) Staff Hiring – Non Certified 
        1.   Cyr, Susan 

• Clerical paraprofessional 
• Central Office 
• Replacing Lisa Stowe 
 

C) Appendix E Position 
        1.   Gilbert, Jeffrey 

• Assistant Coach, Football 
• Seymour High School 
• Replacing Nick Teodosio 

 
D) Ms. Elisa Jones has informed the Board of Education of her intent to home school her 
children, Kenneth Jones, Laney Jones, Kayla Jones, Haleigh Jones and MacKenzie Jones for the 
2010-2011 school year 
 
 Motion for consideration:  to acknowledge the receipt of these forms and render no opinion as 
to the appropriateness of the planned program 

• Mr. Stanek asked should there be a separate motion for the Motion for consideration? 
• Ms. Mascolo stated there should not be a separate motion for the Motion for 

consideration. 
 
E) Finance Committee – October 18, 2010 
 1.     Recommendation to approve the acceptance of the Financial Management Summary for 
September 2010 
 
10-3318:  MOTION:  (Mrs. Loda, sec. Mr. Putorti) to accept the Consent agenda with Items A, B, C, D, 
and E. 
       



Board of Education 
Regular Meeting                                                                                          Oct. 18, 2010 
 

- 3 -

 
SO VOTED: 

 
AFFIRMATIVE:  Mr. Strumello, Mr. Baker, Mr. Putorti, Mrs. Flood, Mrs. Loda, Mr. Stanek, Mr. Kubik, Mr. 
Ward. 
 
ABSTAINED:  Mr. Garofolo 
 
V) ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
  
 NONE 
 
VI) INFORMATION AND REPORTS 

A) INFORMATION 
1.   Student Representative – Reba Putorti 

  a. Homecoming Week – October 18-23, 2010 
• Monday, October 18, 2010 – Hat Day and Seymour Pink Concert 

at Seymour Middle School 
• Tuesday, October 19, 2010 – Color Wars and Dodge Ball Tournament 
• Wednesday October 20, 2010 – Seymour Pink Day 
• Thursday, October 21, 2010 – Door Decorating and Favorite Team 

Jersey Day 
• Friday, October 22, 2010 – Blue and Gold Day, Pep Rally at 12:25 p.m. 

And Football Game at 7:00 p.m. 
• Saturday, October 23, 2010 – Homecoming Dance, 6:00-10:00 P.M., 

Seymour High School 
 
        2.   Seymour High School Improvement Plan - Cathy Goodrich   
  Assistant Principal Freund presented a slideshow on CAPT performance across all 
subjects and school culture and climate.  Research indicates that the more a student is connected to the 
school environment, the better the student will perform.  Also, create a culture and climate that fosters 
importance of student achievement on high stakes testing as measured by the faculty.  Mr. Freund also 
presented new strategies being implemented at the high school, e.g. addition of silent sustained reading 
for 20 minutes daily, increased writing in all areas, e.g. in Art class, and use of Professional Development 
Days to monitor goals.   
 
Assistant Principals Freund and Lucke entertained questions from the Board upon conclusion of the 
slideshow.  Mr. Garofolo asked when students write, if we take representative samples across curriculum 
to see if there is a quality of writing and fold it into overall plan of assessment.  Mr. Freund indicated we 
are heading in that direction, and the high school uses a rubric to check student progress.  Mr. Garofolo 
asked if the students write in World Language classes in English or the language.  Mr. Lucke stated it 
depends on the level of language the students are in, e.g. lower levels write in English.  Mr. Garofolo 
asked how you determine if students are reading or day dreaming.  Mr. Lucke explained teachers are 
developing assessment and are implementing reading strategies into instruction.  Mrs. Goodrich, SHS 
Principal, noted we want the students to read for pleasure so there is no assessment. 
 
Chairman Strumello asked if the high school used pleasure reading to identify need and purpose behind 
SSR.  He noted Killingly uses SSR to read for pleasure.  Chairman Strumello asked is there 100% 
participation?  Mrs. Goodrich and both Assistant Principals stated their teachers read in class each day 
with students for pleasure.  Mrs. Goodrich invited all BOE members to join them any day of the week 
during silent reading time. 
 
Mr. Kubik stated he was happy to hear we are going in a positive direction and asked if anything they see 
that will push us forward?  Mr. Freund stated most critical reading and writing should show increased 
academic performance with pleasure reading.  Mr. Baker asked if SHS is missing discrete skills in Math.   
Mr. Lucke said we are good in discrete skills. Mr. Lucke explained for math reading initiative, there has 
not been enough word problems to increase our math scores; more word problems will help math scores.  
Mr. Baker noted that Math is critical.  Mr. Kubik asked if word problems are the only weakness in Math 
since there is such a disparity between PSAT and SAT data.  Chairman Strumello stated there has been 
a problem in Seymour elementary and middle schools with regard to word problems for years. 
 



Board of Education 
Regular Meeting                                                                                          Oct. 18, 2010 
 

- 4 -

Mr. Stanek asked if there is any data to show increase in CAPT scores.  Mr. Freund stated it would be 
hard to extract this information. 
 
Mr. Ward inquired where we are with curriculum development at the high school.  Principal Goodrich 
explained curriculum is being revised and implemented for the freshmen.  Mr. Ward asked what has been 
the affect/impact on students of the new curriculum.  English teachers are revising and incorporating it in 
classes, and Freshman Seminar has been created.  Mr. Ward asked if teacher/student received 
recognition for activity.  CAPT incentives/raffle tickets with prize written on it, e.g. Prom ticket, parking 
ticket, sweatshirts, which increases attendance in CAPT testing.  Mr. Baker asked how NEASC sees us.  
Principal Goodrich explained we have been taken off warning status. 
               
             3.  Teacher Efficacy Workshop 

     Mrs. Syriac presented a slide show on the book by Carol Dweck, “What Is Mindset?”  
Examples:  Fixed mindset: basic qualities, you are born bright or not very bright. Growth Mindset: through 
effort/practice/learning we can acquire abilities not born with – work to become great.  
 
Administrators encourage teachers with low efficacy to reflect on respect, build trust; student should be in 
welcoming/supporting classroom; teacher should expect students to learn, they will learn. Other 
conversation points:  external factors beyond our control, private dialogue with student/parent, teacher 
take responsibility for student learning.  How do we respond when students do not learn?  Low efficacy – 
teachers play blame game; if students are failing at a high rate, we need to look at instruction.  

 
4.  2010-11 Minimum Budget Requirement 
     Mr. Belden stated we would look to Brian Mahoney and the State Department for Guidance 
 

     Mr. Putorti asked if we will be able to get the $1.4 Federal funds.  Mr. Belden stated there is nothing 
that says we will definitely get it. 

 
5. BOE Regular Meeting Minutes Revised – September 20, 2010 

 
       NONE 

 
B) REPORTS 

1.  Committee Reports 
a.  Policy Committee Minutes – October 14, 2010 

 Chairman Strumello thanked Joan Rinkewith for all her hard work and help with the 
 policies.  
 

b.   Liaison Committee Minutes – October 18, 2010  
 
c.   Finance Committee Meeting – October 18, 2010 

 
2. Chairman’s Report 

 
a. Reflect on Assistant Principal Interview Procedure 

                           Chairman Strumello stated he was skeptical at first of the new procedure, and then he 
was revitalized and amazed at how many talented candidates had come forward and applied to the 
Seymour District.  He was happy with all aspects of the process and all parties concerned.  Mrs. Loda 
agreed with Chairman Strumello and pleased with all the candidates 
 
            b. Graduation Committee 
                Chairman Strumello would like representatives from all schools in the Seymour district 
and city-wide, e.g. Seymour Police Department, BOE members, Mr. Stanek and Mr. Putorti, to participate 
 

c. Board Members Comments 
None 

        
3. Superintendent’s Report 

 
Ms. Mascolo reviewed the details of her report, including meetings and activities of the last two weeks, 
upcoming meetings and events.  Pizza will be served at the Dec. 6th meeting at 6:30 PM at Central Office 
at and a 45 minute presentation of Electronic Board and October 20th is Seymour Pink Day.  
 



Board of Education 
Regular Meeting                                                                                          Oct. 18, 2010 
 

- 5 -

A Policy Committee meeting is scheduled for December 16th.  At that time, more Policy meetings will be 
set up.  Chairman Strumello asked Ms. Mascolo to look at more dates for meetings before they meet on 
December 16th. 

 
VII) RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

A) Seymour Middle School Assistant Principal   
Mr. Putorti asked why Mr. Aldave had so many job changes.  Ms. Mascolo explained Mr. 

Aldave worked in larger school districts with diverse cultures and jobs were phased out in some school 
systems.           

 
10-3320:  MOTION:  (Mr. Loda, sec. Mr. Kubik) to accept the recommendation of the Superintendent  
to hire Carlos Aldave as the Seymour Middle School Assistant Principal per contract 

SO VOTED: 

AFFIRMATIVE:  Mr. Strumello, Mr. Baker, Mr. Putorti, Mrs. Flood, Mrs. Loda, Mr. Stanek, Mr. Kubik,     
Mr. Ward  
 
ABSTAINED:  Mr. Garofolo 
 

B) Districtwide Full Day Kindergarten 
Mr. Belden presented three scenarios (see handout) 

 
      Mr. Stanek wants more discussion, and to hear the Administration’s in depth scenario on full 

day Kindergarten.  Mrs. Flood asked if we are sure we can reserve educational fund grant toward full day 
Kindergarten.  Ms. Mascolo said yes, we can.   Mr. Kubik feels it is important to implement full day 
Kindergarten district wide; it is in the best interest of the children.  Mrs. Loda is in favor, but her concern is 
what we will do when money is gone; she feels we have a better chance of keeping the money if we go 
forward.  Mr. Putorti is not in favor of adding expenses to our budget at this time.  Mrs. Loda asked what 
the Superintendent recommends.  Ms. Mascolo stated we need a plan for new Chatfield/LoPresti opening 
up first.  Ms. Mascolo feels we should implement full day Kindergarten over the next two years; full day 
Kindergarten will benefit every child.  Mr. Stanek agrees Seymour should have full day Kindergarten, but 
we need to show the town the importance of it, and also talk to the Board of Finance.  Chairman 
Strumello stated it is hard for him to weigh the political/financial climate for kids, and wants more thorough 
conversation and discussion on this matter.  Chairman Strumello does not like the idea of having a joint 
meeting with the Board of Finance.  Mr. Putorti restated it is not a good idea for full day Kindergarten this 
year – financial suicide.  Chairman Strumello has questions about class sizes.  Mr. Baker stated there will 
never be a time for this to be an easy thing to do.  Mr. Stanek asked for more information on this matter 
before the next meeting. 
 
10-3321:  MOTION:  (Mr. Putorti, sec. Mr. Ward) to table action until November 15, 2010 regularly 
scheduled meeting with discussion at the October 25th Budget meeting. 
 

SO VOTED: 
 
AFFIRMATIVE:  Chairman Strumello, Mr. Baker, Mr. Ward, Mr. Stanek, Mr. Putorti, Mr. Kubik, 
Mr. Garofolo, Mrs. Flood, Mrs. Loda 

VIII) EXECUTIVE SESSION 
            NONE  
 
10-3322:  MOTION:  (Mrs. Loda, sec. Mrs. Flood) moved to adjourn to adjourn the meeting at 10:13 PM.  

SO VOTED: 

AFFIRMATIVE:  Mr. Strumello, Mr. Baker, Mr. Putorti, Mrs. Flood, Mrs. Loda, Mr. Stanek, Mr. Kubik,    
Mr. Ward, Mr. Garofolo 

     Submitted, 
 
     Patricia Gillis, Clerk 



Board of Education 
Regular Meeting                                                                                          Oct. 18, 2010 
 

- 6 -



Board of Education 
Regular Meeting                                                                                          Oct. 18, 2010 
 

- 7 -

 



Board of Education 
Regular Meeting                                                                                          Oct. 18, 2010 
 

- 8 -

 


